Public Document Pack

Audit and Accounts Committee
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.
The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and
input into the decision-making process.
Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed,
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.
Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus
DATE:

Wednesday, 20 January 2021

TIME:

3.45 pm

VENUE:

On-line Live Meeting (MS Teams) via the link below.

AGENDA
3:30PM PRIVATE MEETING FOR THE MEMBERS OF THE
COMMITTEE WITH THE INTERNAL AUDITORS
ON-LINE MEETING (VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS - AUDIO ONLY) VIA
THE LINK BELOW:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetupjoin/19%3ameeting_YTVjZTgwNGItODkyYS00YTNhLTg1MDMtOGM
5ZjkyMmY4YWM1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2
268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22d7e0a353-9a97-4a8e952cf6451ae2de66%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
1

Apologies for Absence

2

The Committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the
inclusion of the items listed in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda.

3

Declarations of Interest.

4

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous
meeting.
Minutes of the meeting held on 25th November 2020.

(Pages 1 - 4)

5

Matters Arising

6

Training for members


7

To include consideration of the self assessment results.

External Auditors Audit Committee Progress Update - Mazars


(Pages 5 - 8)

(Pages 9 - 38)

The Annual Audit Letter.

8

Internal Audit Progress Report - David Smith

(Pages 39 - 52)

9

Standards in Public Life Report - Sian Roxborough/Jean Gleave

(Pages 53 - 58)

10

URGENT BUSINESS - PART 1

11

Date of Next Meeting
Wednesday 24th March 2020 at 2pm.

Contact Officer:
Tel No:
E-Mail:

Liz Wright
0161 793 2811
decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4
Audit and Accounts Committee
Conducted as a Live Teams Meeting (audio only)
Date: 25 November 2020
Meeting commenced: 2:00pm
Meeting ended: 2.30pm
Present:
 Councillor Robin Garrido: In the Chair
 Councillors: Joshua Brooks, David Jolley, John Walsh.
 Co-opted Members: Edoardo Bucci
 Invitee: Councillor Bill Hinds
Public: None
Officers:
 Cath Andrews – External Auditors Mazars
 Jean Gleave - Head of Internal Audit
 Chris Hesketh – Head of Financial Management
 Karen Murray - External Auditor Mazars
 Sian Roxborough – City Solicitor
 Tony Thompstone – Strategic Finance Manager
 Liz Wright - Senior Democratic Services Officer
1. Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Joanne hardman, Chief Finance Officer (CFO).
2. The committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the inclusion of the items listed
in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda
It was confirmed that all items were Part 1 items.
Resolved: That the items included on the agenda for this meeting be approved.
3. Declarations of interest
Councillor Garrido declared the following interest:


Forviva Group (Main board member for the Group, Chair of the Development Committee
Member of the Audit and Accounts Committee)

4. To approve, as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved: That the committee approved, as a true and correct record, the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 21st October 2020.
5. Matters arising
There were no matters arising from the minutes.
6. External Auditors: Audit Completion Report
Karen Murray (External Auditor – Mazars) introduced the report and highlighted the following.
 It was an update for the report presented in September. The issues highlighted as still to be
completed in that report had been largely updated.
 The only outstanding item for the completion of the audit was for the external auditors to
receive the letter of representation and the signed accounts from the council.
 The external auditors intent was to issue an unqualified opinion on the council’s accounts.
Audit & Accounts Committee 25.11.20
1

Page 1










There would be an emphasis of matter on two items:
o The material valuation uncertainty on the council’s owned properties;
o The material valuation uncertainty on the property held by the pension fund;
These material valuation uncertainties reflected were not of a particular concern, as they
reflected the difficulties valuers faced valuing properties when the country went into
lockdown in March. The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors issued guidance to valuers
that to suggest that a material valuation uncertainty at 31.03.20 was appropriate and the
council’s valuers had reflected that in their report.
The external auditor would issue an unqualified value for money conclusion, as reported at
the October meeting.
At the October meeting the following were highlighted and had now been resolved:
o The management override of contrails work had been completed.
o The valuation of property, plant and equipment (PPE) required to be drawn to the
attention of the committee, due to an understated valuation of land and buildings to the
total of £462,000 but it was confirmed this did not require the accounts to be amended.
o There had also been an adjustment required between debtors and cash and this had
been due to a simple coding error, which had been amended.
o There were some minor amendments to the disclosures in the notes for the accounts
and these had been rectified and had no significance in terms of the council’s financial
position but had to be corrected for compliance reasons. These were read out to the
committee. The most significant being in relation to council leases.
The external auditor thanked the Finance Team for the support they had received to enable
them to carry out the audit, during the pandemic.
The external auditors recommended that committee could approve the accounts, sign the
letter of representation and then the external auditors could sign off the audit, which could
be done by the weekend if the committee completed these actions.

The external auditor invited questions from the members and the following were raised.
 The Chair asked about the £462,000 asset valuation and whether or not it needed to be
dealt with under this year’s accounts or would it be addressed next year. It was confirmed
that it would come under next year’s accounts and that they were minor errors and were
not issues that an amendment would be expected for.
 A member asked about physical verification of assets and asked if for the valuation of PPE,
the management had any input over the assumptions that were used and what approach
was used on the audit. The External auditor confirmed that the approach to the audit was
largely substantive testing approach (carried out by the external auditors) and internal audit
was not relied on for assurance for any aspect of the audit (as this was not allowed) but the
outcomes of the work of internal audit were examined to see if it raised any issues to be
further investigated. The external auditors confirmed they took a sample of the PPE
valuations and verify them. There were issues caused by the pandemic, such as the assets
in Salford museum, which could not be visited but staff provided photographic evidence of
assets in situ.
 A member asked if valuations needed to be updated would they get picked up next year.
The external auditor confirmed they were satisfied that the valuations were materially
correct as of 31.03,20 and that the valuers would review them next year and pick up any
changes. In terms of the airports valuation, it was confirmed it was carried out by an
independent valuer and the external auditors had brought in a further independent valuer to
check the valuation , so two independent valuers were used. It was commented that the
valuation could change post pandemic and this would be picked up next year.
 The Chair asked if the risk connected to the airport and pensions had been correctly stated
by the council and the Head of Financial Management confirmed it had and this was
verified by the external auditors.
Audit & Accounts Committee 25.11.20
2

Page 2




The Chair asked about the £6M adjustment on assets and it was confirmed that it was due
to an error that had been rectified.
The Chair asked the members to vote on the acceptance of the Audit Completion Report
and the vote was unanimous in favour of accepting the report.

Resolved: That, committee accepts the Audit Completion Report.
7. Statement of Accounts 2019/20
The Head of Financial Management (Chris Hesketh) thanked and commended the external
auditors for their work and that the work of the Finance Team during these very challenging
circumstances and for producing the Statement of Accounts had been recognised by the
auditors. The Strategic Finance Manager (Tony Thompstone) introduced the report and
highlighted the following.
 The report was an update on the previous report presented at the September meeting.
 The report recommended that members:
1. considered the contents of the auditor’s Audit Findings report and this complementary
report and, should they wish, request further detail on any issue of concern;
2. authorised the changes to the statement of accounts outlined in the audit findings report;
3. authorised the committee chair to sign the statement of responsibilities within the
statement of accounts and the letter of representation
4. noted the representations to be made by the Chief Finance Officer in Appendix B.
 Table 1 was highlighted to show the debtors and cash error that was discussed under the
previous item and confirmed that it did not materially affect the accounts.
 The revised balance sheet was highlighted and other changes required by the external
auditors were highlighted to confirm they had been enacted.
 If the members were satisfied with the Statement of Accounts they could approve them and
then the CFO would send the letter of representation as outlined in Appendix B and the
accounts would be signed by the Chair.
The Strategic Finance Manager invited questions from members and the following were
raised.






The Chair asked if the borrowing figures included unsupported borrowing and it was
confirmed that they did.
The Chair commented that the accounts would not take account of any Government
Covid19 grants that would have been received after 31.03.20 and that these would show in
the accounts from 2020/21 and this was confirmed.
The Chair asked members to vote on the recommendations as stated in the report and
they were all approved unanimously.
On behalf of the committee, the Chair thanked the all the officers in the Finance Team for
their hard work and commitment during the pandemic to provide all the information
required by the external auditors and for producing the Statement of Accounts within the
deadlines and despite the very challenging circumstances.

Resolved: That, the committee approves the Statement of Accounts and all accepts all
recommendations in the report.
8. URGENT BUSINESS – PART 1
There no urgent Part 1 business.
9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
Audit & Accounts Committee 25.11.20

Page 3

3

Part 2 – Closed to the Public
There were no items of Part 2 business.
10. Urgent business – Part 2
There was no urgent Part 2 business.
11. Date of the next meeting
The dates of the future meetings listed below were confirmed and it was agreed that members
would meet from 1:45pm for the 2pm start.



Wednesday 20 January 2021 at 2pm
Wednesday 24 March 2021 at 2pm

Committee Members attendance 2020/21
 = present; A = Apologies submitted; Blank = No apologies submitted.
Councillor

Jan

March

June

July

Sept

Oct

Nov

Councillor R Garrido (chair)



Cancelled due to
Covid19











Councillor J Brooks



Cancelled due to
Covid19



A







Cancelled due to
Covid19

Councillor P Coen

March

A

Councillor D Jolley



Cancelled due to
Covid19









Councillor R Jones



Cancelled due to
Covid19









Councillor M Pevitt



Cancelled due to
Covid19



A





Councillor John Walsh



Cancelled due to
Covid19











Councillor B Hinds (invitee)

A

Cancelled due to
Covid19







A



Vittoria Bugana
(co-opted member)



Cancelled due to
Covid19





A







Edorado Bucci
(co-opted member)

Audit & Accounts Committee 25.11.20

Jan

Page 4

4

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A: Self-assessment of Good Practice
This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out
in CIPFA’s published position statement and guidance (Audit Committees, Practical
Guidance for Local Authorities, 2018).
Where an audit committee has a high degree of performance against the good
practice principles, then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly based and has
in place a knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in developing
an effective audit committee.
A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit committee
work programme and training plans. It can also inform an annual report.

GOOD PRACTICE QUESTIONS

Yes

Partly

Audit committee purpose and governance
1

Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee?

100%

2

Does the audit committee report directly to full council?
(applicable to local government only)

40%

3

Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of
the committee in accordance with CIPFA’s Position
Statement?

100%

4

Is the role and purpose of the audit committee
understood and accepted across the authority?

80%

5

Does the audit committee provide support to the
authority in meeting the requirements of good
governance?

100%

6

Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account
for its performance operating satisfactorily?

80%

7

Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address
all the core areas identified in CIPFA’s Position
Statement?

pg. 1



good governance

100%



assurance framework, including partnerships and
collaboration arrangements

100%



internal audit

100%



external audit

100%



financial reporting

100%



risk management

100%



value for money or best value

100%



counter fraud and corruption

100%



supporting the ethical framework

100%

Page 5

60%

20%

20%

No

GOOD PRACTICE QUESTIONS

Yes

Partly

No

Functions of the committee
8

Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether
the committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and that
adequate consideration has been given to all core
areas?

100%

9

Has the audit committee considered the wider areas
identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement and whether it
would be appropriate for the committee to undertake
them?

100%

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be
limited, are plans in place to address this?

100%

11 Has the committee maintained its advisory role by not
taking on any decision-making powers that are not in
line with its core purpose?

100%

(or N/A)

Membership and support
12 Has an effective audit committee structure and
composition of the committee been selected? This
should include:
a) separation from the executive;
b) an appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among
the membership;
c) a size of committee that is not unwieldy; and
d) consideration has been given to the inclusion of at
least one independent member (where it is not
already a mandatory requirement).

100%

13 Have independent members appointed to the
committee been recruited in an open and transparent
way and approved by the full council or as appropriate
for the organisation?

100%

14 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate
knowledge and skills?

80%

15 Are arrangements in place to support the committee
with briefings and training?

100%

16 Has the membership of the committee been assessed
against the core knowledge and skills framework and
found to be satisfactory?

75%

17 Does the committee have good working relations with
key people and organisations, including external audit,
internal audit and the CFO?

100%

18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to
the committee provided?

100%

pg. 2

Page 6

20%

25%

GOOD PRACTICE QUESTIONS

Yes

Partly

No

Effectiveness of the committee
19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its
performance from those interacting with the committee
or relying on its work?

75%

20 Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion
and engagement from all the members?

100%

21 Does the committee engage with a wide range of
leaders and managers, including discussion of audit
findings, risks and action plans with the responsible
officers?

100%

22 Does the committee make recommendations for the
improvement of governance, risk and control and are
these acted on?

100%

23 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is
adding value to the organisation?

60%

40%

24 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any
areas of weakness?

50%

25%

25 Does the committee publish an annual report to account 100%
for its performance and explain its work?

pg. 3

Page 7

25%

25%

This page is intentionally left blank

Audit Progress Report

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

1. Audit Progress
2. National Publications
Page 10
8 January 2021

2

Section 01:
Audit Progress
Page 11

Audit Progress

Purpose of this report
This report provides the Audit and Accounts Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.
Audit progress

Page 12

We completed our external audit of the Council’s 2019/20 financial statements and value for money conclusion in November 2020, signing the audit
report on 27 November.
We are now undertaking the required audit work on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) submission. This work is carried out to
instructions issued by the National Audit Office and we report to the NAO our conclusions from this work. Should there be any significant findings
from this work we will report these to the Audit and Accounts Committee in a subsequent Audit Update Report. We expect to complete this work and
report to NAO in January 2021.
We will commence our audit planning for the 2020/21 audit in January/February 2021 and will present our Audit Strategy Memorandum to a
subsequent Audit and Accounts Committee meeting. We have held regular discussions with the Council’s Finance staff and these help us to keep
up to date with emerging issues that may impact on our external audit.
External audit work on the Council’s arrangements to deliver value for money in its use of resources
We reported during 2019/20 that the National Audit Office had updated their Code of Audit Practice and that this new Code applies from 2020/21.
The new Code changes the work that auditors will be required to do, and the related reporting, on Councils arrangements to deliver value for money
in their use of resources.

8 January 2021

4

Audit Progress

External audit work on the Council’s arrangements to deliver value for money in its use of resources (continued)
The changes to the reporting requirements means that from 2020/21 we will no longer include a value for money conclusion in our Financial
Statements Audit Report. We will report our commentary on the Council’s arrangements to deliver value for money in a new Auditor’s Annual Report
(which replaces the Annual Audit Letter). The NAO Code requires that where auditors identify weaknesses in Council’s arrangements they should
report recommendations to the Council promptly through the year.

Page 13

In carrying out our work we will comply with the NAO’s guidance on value for money work, which identifies that the work must have regard to the
following specific criteria:
• Financial sustainability: how the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;
• Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and
• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the body uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it
manages and delivers its services.
We will keep Audit and Accounts Committee up to date on our progress as we complete our audit work.

8 January 2021

5

Section 02:
National Publications
Page 14

National Publications
Publication/update

Key points

Page

1

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: Disclosure
Checklist for 2020/21 Accounts

2020/21 Disclosure checklist

8

2

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: Guidance
Notes for 2020/21 Accounts

2020/21 Code Guidance Notes

8

3

Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2021/22

2020/21 SeRCOP Guidance

8

Guidance for Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinions 2020/21

Guidance

9

A Guide to Local Authority and Public Sector Asset Management

Step-by-step guide

9

Planning to Deliver Good Value in Demand-led Services (social care)

Good practice framework

9

Local auditor reporting application

Data on local auditor reporting presented through an interactive map

10

Local authority financial reporting and external audit: government response to the
Redmond review

MHCLG's response to Sir Tony Redmond’s independent review

11

FRC Audit Quality report

12

CIPFA

5
6

Page 15

4

National Audit Office
7
MHCLG
8

Financial Reporting Council
9

Local Audit Inspections

8 January 2021

7

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA

1. Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: Disclosure Checklist for 2020/21 Accounts, January 2021
The 2020/21 version of the disclosure checklist has been updated to reflect the reporting requirements introduced by the 2020/21 Code of Practice. This annual publication is for finance practitioners in local
authorities and external audit agencies and firms in England, Scotland and Wales.
The checklist is in the form of a series of questions. If the answer to any question is no, then a justification for departing from the Code should be given and potentially disclosed in the accounts, where the
impact of departures is material.

Page 16

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/disclosure-checklist-202021-print
2. Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: Guidance Notes for 2020/21 Accounts, January 2021
This edition of the Guidance Notes provides detailed guidance on the key accounting changes introduced by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) 2020/21,
and includes amendments to implement amendments to accounting standards, reference to arrangements for the application of accounting standards arising as a consequence of the UK’s withdrawal from the
EU and legislative amendments. The example financial statements have also been updated to reflect these changes.
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/c/code-of-practice-guidance-notes-202021-print
3. Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2021/22, January 2021
Modern local government is constantly developing and adapting to its current economic climate. Transparency initiatives, performance and best value regimes are evolving in expectation of the government
becoming more sophisticated.
SeRCOP is reviewed annually to ensure that it develops in line with the needs of local government, transparency, best value and public services reform.
In England, SeRCOP is given legislative backing under the Local Government Act 2003. In Scotland SeRCOP's Service Expenditure Analysis (SEA) and guidance is used by the Scottish Government as the
basis for specifying the requirements of the Local Financial Returns (LFRs)..
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/s/service-reporting-code-of-practice-for-local-authorities-202122

8 January 2021

8

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA

4. Guidance for Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinions 2020/21, November 2020
The annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS). It is an important source of assurance that supports a local government body’s annual governance statement.
If sufficient assurance is not available from internal audit work completed and other sources of assurance that the head of internal audit may seek to place reliance on then they should publish a limitation of
scope to explain the position and impact on the annual opinion. The guidance sets out the steps heads of internal audit, together with the leadership team and audit committee, should take.

Page 17

To further support the guidance CIPFA held a free webinar on 15 December.
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/guidance-for-head-of-internal-audit-annual-opinions-202021
5. A Guide to Local Authority and Public Sector Asset Management, November 2020
This step by step guide to asset management in the public sector has been produced by CIPFA Property. It takes the reader on the asset management journey, from the development of strategic asset
management policies and strategies designed to deliver corporate objectives through to the development, implementation, challenge and review of asset management practices and portfolios.
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/asset-management-in-the-public-sector-a-practitioners-guide
6. Planning to Deliver Good Value in Demand-led Services (social care), November 2020
Several local authorities successfully deliver good value in these areas, and this publication draws on their experience and best practice. It sets out a three step framework, based on a number of essential
elements that recognise the challenges involved. This framework emphasises the importance of business partnering and ensuring plans reflect reality to enable improved operational and financial resilience.
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/planning-to-deliver-good-value-in-demand-led-services-social-care

8 January 2021

9

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office

7. Local auditor reporting application, December 2020
The local auditor reporting application presents the opinions of local auditors on local public bodies’ financial statements and conclusions on whether they have proper arrangements in place to secure value
for money. The data is presented through an interactive map which allows users to explore auditor reporting for nine different types of local body and two different audit years. The interactive map also
contains pop-ups to enable users to access further information about the body, such as the local auditor’s report or annual audit letter.
https://www.nao.org.uk/other/local-auditor-reporting-application/

Page 18
8 January 2021

10

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
MHCLG

8. MHCLG's response to Sir Tony Redmond’s independent review, December 2020
The response of the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to Sir Tony Redmond’s Independent review into the oversight of local audit and the transparency of local authority financial
reporting. The Redmond Review made 23 recommendations relating to the quality, timeliness and sustainability of local audit, and the transparency of local authority accounts. The department has grouped its
response into 5 themes, which are summarised in Annex A to the response.
Amongst the responses MHCLG confirmed that they intend to amend existing regulations to extend the deadline for publishing audited local authority accounts from 31 July to 30 September, for a period of
two years (i.e. covering the audit of the 2020/21 and 2021/22 accounting years). At the end of this period they will review whether there is a continued need to have an extended deadline.

Page 19

They also confirmed that they did not intend to create an Office of Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR) stating in their response that they “do not wish to re-create the costly, bureaucratic and over-centralised
Audit Commission”. They added that they “will commit to explore the full range of options as to how best to deliver Sir Tony’s finding that a ‘system leader’ is required. This will include close consideration of
whether existing bodies could take on this function.”
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-government-response-to-the-redmond-review/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-auditgovernment-response-to-the-independent-review

8 January 2021

11

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
Financial Reporting Council

9. Major Local Audits – Audit Quality Inspection, October 2020
The framework for the inspection of local audit work

Page 20

Responsibility for the inspection of local audit work is now with the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) for ‘major local audits’ (those with annual expenditure which exceeds £500m) and the ICAEW for those
bodies which do not meet the major local audit definition. As part of their inspection of major local audits for the 2018/19 financial year, the Audit Quality Review (AQR) team of the FRC reviewed two of our
major local audits and found these to require significant improvements in respect of our audit of the financial statements. The same reviews indicated that our work on value for money arrangements for those
audits was of a good standard. Our non-major local audits for 2018/19 were not subject to inspection by the ICAEW.
Our response to the FRC’s findings
We are committed to delivering high-quality audits to all of our clients and have responded robustly to the AQR’s findings. Our Local Audit Quality Plan incorporates the risks to audit quality identified from a
range of sources and identifies that actions we have put in place, or are taking, to mitigate these risks. Our Audit Quality Team is responsible for the maintenance of the plan which is also subject to oversight
and scrutiny from the firm’s Audit Board.
In addition, we have undertaken a detailed root cause analysis project to identify and understand the drivers of poor audit quality in some of our local audit work. This has focused on all local audits where the
need for improvement or significant improvements have been identified either through external inspections or our programme of internal quality monitoring reviews.
We have taken steps to respond to the AQR’s specific findings in relation to our work in the following areas of the audit:
•

Testing the valuation of property assets;

•

Exercising appropriate oversight of group audits, including the direction, supervision and review of the work of component auditors; and

•

Document judgements made as part of the audit process, specifically those in relation to our testing of income and expenditure.

We have also strengthened our standard procedures in relation to the audit of net defined benefit pension liabilities arising from our clients’ membership of local government pension schemes.
The FRC’s report on its inspection findings in relation to the quality of major local audits for the year ended 31 March 2019, can be found here. This also includes our detailed response to their findings on our
financial statement audits.

8 January 2021

12

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
Financial Reporting Council

9. Major Local Audits – Audit Quality Inspection, October 2020 (continued)
What this means for the Council
As outlined above, we take the weaknesses identified by the FRC extremely seriously, and our response to the improvement areas has been robust. It is clear that on areas of the audit such as the valuation
of property assets (including investment properties) and the audit of defined benefit pension liabilities, we must do more to meet the regulator’s expectations. This is means the time we spend on these areas
of the audit will increase and the level of challenge we apply in auditing these areas will also increase. Your finance team and your experts will have seen the increase in the scope and scale of work we have
undertaken in 2019/20 in terms of the granularity and depth of testing and changes to our sample sizes in a number of key areas.

Page 21

Going forward, our response and the increase in the challenge we make, is likely to include the engagement of our own experts (for example, property valuation experts) to fully consider the methodologies
and judgements applied by the Council’s own experts. There will be consequential effects on the fee that we are likely to request from the Council to undertake the audit.

8 January 2021

13

Contact

Follow us:

Mazars

LinkedIn:
www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars

Page 22

Partner: Karen Murray

Senior Manager: Cath Andrew

Phone: 0161 238 9248

Phone: 0191 383 6318

Mobile: 07721 234043

Mobile: 07815 878116

Email: karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Email: cath.andrew@mazars.co.uk

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.
*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

Twitter:
www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup
Facebook:
www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup
Instagram:
www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup
WeChat:
ID: Mazars

Annual Audit Letter
Salford City Council
Year ending 31 March 2020

Page 23

Contents
01

Executive summary

02

Audit of the financial statements

03

Value for money conclusion

04

Other reporting responsibilities

05

Our fees

06

Forward look

Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ issued by Public Sector
Audit Appointments Ltd. Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for
the sole use of the Council. No responsibility is accepted to any member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party. Our
written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Page 24

1

1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Purpose of the Annual Audit Letter
Our Annual Audit Letter summarises the work we have undertaken as the auditor for Salford City Council (the
Council) for the year ended 31 March 2020. Although this letter is addressed to the Council, it is designed to be
read by a wider audience including members of the public and other external stakeholders.
Our responsibilities are defined by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of
Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (the NAO). The detailed sections of this letter provide details
on those responsibilities, the work we have done to discharge them, and the key findings arising from our work.
These are summarised below.

Area of responsibility

Summary

Audit of the financial
statements

Our auditor’s report issued on 27 November 2020 included our opinion
that the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31
March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then
ended; and
• have been prepared properly in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2019/20.

Other information published
alongside the audited financial
statements

Our auditor’s report included our opinion that:
• the other information in the Statement of Accounts is consistent with
the audited financial statements.

Value for money conclusion

Our auditor’s report concluded that we are satisfied that in all significant
respects, the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

Reporting to the group auditor

Group audit instructions were issued by the NAO on 4th November, we
have started the work with no issues to report to date, we expect to
report in January to the group auditor in line with the requirements
applicable to the Council’s WGA return.

Statutory reporting

Our auditor’s report confirmed that we did not use our powers under
s24 of the 2014 Act to issue a report in the public interest or to make
written recommendations to the Council.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 25

Our fees

Forward look

2

2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion on the financial statements

Unqualified

The scope of our audit and the results of our work
The purpose of our audit is to provide reasonable assurance to users that the financial statements are free from
material error. We do this by expressing an opinion on whether the statements are prepared, in all material
respects, in line with the financial reporting framework applicable to the Council and whether they give a true and
fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2020 and of its financial performance for the year then
ended.
Our audit was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice issued by the NAO,
and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). These require us to consider whether:
•

the accounting policies are appropriate to the Council’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed;

•

the significant accounting estimates made by management in the preparation of the financial statements
are reasonable; and

•

the overall presentation of the financial statements provides a true and fair view.

Our auditor’s report, stated that in our view, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Council's
financial position as at 31 March 2020 and of its financial performance for the year then ended. The report included
an emphasis of matter paragraph in relation to material uncertainties in the valuation of the Council’s investment
properties and surplus assets and the Council’s share of pension fund property assets.

Our approach to materiality
We apply the concept of materiality when planning and performing our audit, and when evaluating the effect of
misstatements identified as part of our work. We consider the concept of materiality at numerous stages
throughout the audit process, in particular when determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures,
and when evaluating the effect of uncorrected misstatements. An item is considered material if its misstatement or
omission could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users of the financial statements.
Judgements about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by both
qualitative and quantitative factors. As a result we have set materiality for the financial statements as a whole
(financial statement materiality) and a lower level of materiality for specific items of account (specific materiality)
due to the nature of these items or because they attract public interest. We also set a threshold for reporting
identified misstatements to the Audit and Accounts Committee. We call this our trivial threshold.
The table below provides details of the materiality levels applied in the audit of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020:
Financial statement
materiality

Our financial statement materiality is based on
2% of gross revenue expenditure at the
surplus/deficit on provision of services

£14,955,000

Trivial threshold

Our trivial threshold is based on 3% of financial
statement materiality.

£449,000

Specific materiality

We have applied a lower level of materiality to
the following areas of the accounts:
- senior officers remuneration

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 26

£5,000

Our fees

Forward look

3

2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our response to significant risks
As part of our continuous planning procedures we considered whether there were risks of material misstatement in
the Council's financial statements that required special audit consideration. We reported significant risks identified
at the planning stage to the Audit and Accounts Committee within our Audit Strategy Memorandum and provided
details of how we responded to those risks in our Audit Completion Report. The table below outlines the identified
significant risks, the work we carried out on those risks and our conclusions.
.

Our findings and
conclusions

Identified significant risk

Our response

Management override of controls
In all entities, management at
various levels within an organisation
are in a unique position to
perpetrate fraud because of their
ability to manipulate accounting
records and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be
operating effectively. Due to the
unpredictable way in which such
override could occur, we consider
there to be a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and thus
a significant risk on all audits.

We addressed this risk through
performing audit work over:
• Accounting estimates impacting
on amounts included in the
financial statements;
• Consideration of identified
significant transactions outside
the normal course of business;
and
• Journals recorded in the general
ledger and other adjustments
made in preparation of the
financial statements

Our audit work has
provided the assurance
we sought and has not
identified any material
issues to bring to your
attention. There is no
indication of management
override of controls.

Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) Valuation
The financial statements contain
material entries on the Balance
Sheet as well as material disclosure
notes in relation to the Council’s
holding of PPE. Although the
Council uses a valuation expert to
provide information on valuations,
there remains a high degree of
estimation uncertainty associated
with the revaluation of PPE due to
the significant judgements and
number of variables involved in
providing revaluations. We therefore
identified the valuation of PPE to be
an area of significant risk.

We addressed this risk by
considering the Council’s
arrangements for ensuring that PPE
values are reasonable and engaged
our own expert to provide data to
enable us to assess the
reasonableness of the valuations
provided by the internal valuer. We
also assessed the competence, skills
and experience of the valuer.

The valuer disclosed a
“material valuation
uncertainty” in relation to
the valuation of the
Council’s property assets,
arising from the potential
impact of COVID-19 on
values. This has been
disclosed in note 4 of the
final version of the
financial statements. We
plan, in line with normal
practice, to include
reference to this
disclosure as an
‘emphasis of matter’ in
our audit report. The
purpose of this paragraph
is to draw attention to this
disclosure, it is not a
qualification and does not
modify our proposed
unqualified opinion on the
financial statements.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

We discussed methods used with
the valuer and examined supporting
information. We used indices
provided by our own expert to
confirm the assets not revalued are
unlikely to have materially changed
in value. We tested revaluations in
year to valuation reports and
supporting calculation sheets and reperformed the calculations to ensure
that they were correct and source
data agreed with floor plans and
relevant indices. We also considered
the impact of COVID-19 on the
valuations to gain additional
assurance on their reasonableness.
Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 27

Our fees

Forward look

4

2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our response to significant risks (continued)
Our findings and
conclusions

Identified significant risk

Our response

Defined benefit liability valuation
The financial statements contain
material pension entries in respect
of retirement benefits. The
calculation of these pension figures,
both assets and liabilities, can be
subject to significant volatility and
includes estimates based upon a
complex interaction of actuarial
assumptions. Moreover, in 2019/20
the local government pension fund
assets and liabilities were subject to
triennial revaluation. This resulted in
an increased risk of material
misstatement.

We discussed with key contacts any
significant changes to the pension
estimates. In addition to our standard
programme of work in this area, we
evaluated the management controls
that you have in place to assess the
reasonableness of the figures
provided by the Actuary and
considered the reasonableness of
the Actuary’s output, referring to our
expert’s report on all actuaries
nationally.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

We reviewed the appropriateness of
the key assumptions included within
the valuations, compared them to
expected ranges and reviewed the
methodology applied in the valuation.
We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the financial
statements.

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 28

The pension fund
accounts disclosed a
material valuation
uncertainty in relation to
property investments,
arising from the potential
impact of COVID-19 on
values. This has been
disclosed in note 4 of the
final version of the
financial statements. We
plan, in line with normal
practice, to include
reference to this
disclosure as an
‘emphasis of matter’ in
our audit report. The
purpose of this paragraph
is to draw attention to this
disclosure, it is not a
qualification and does not
modify our proposed
unqualified opinion on the
financial statements.

Our fees

Forward look

5

2.

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Internal control recommendations
As part of our audit we considered the internal controls in place that are relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements. We did this to design audit procedures that allow us to express our opinion on the financial
statements, but this did not extend to us expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal controls.
We have not identified any deficiencies in internal control as part of our audit.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 29

Our fees

Forward look

6

3.

VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION
Value for money conclusion

Unqualified

Our audit approach
We are required to consider whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are
required to carry out in order to form our conclusion, and sets out the criterion and sub-criteria that we are required
to consider.
The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers
and local people.’ To assist auditors in reaching a conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are
set out by the NAO:
•

informed decision making;

•

sustainable resource deployment; and

•

working with partners and other third parties.

Our auditor’s report stated that, in all significant respects, the Council put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31st March 2020.

Sub-criteria

Commentary

Informed decision
making

We reviewed financial, performance and risk
management reports throughout the year and attended
meetings of the Audit and Accounts Committee. We did
not identify any concerns regarding data quality or the
decision-making process.
The Council reviewed budget monitoring reports and
updates to the medium term financial strategy through
the year and took early and effective action to address
financial pressures.
We considered the following aspects of proper
arrangements specified by the National Audit Office as
part of our risk assessment, and, based on our riskbased approach, we did not identify any significant
issues or exceptions in the Council’s arrangements:
a) Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating
and applying the principles and values of sound
governance;
b) Understanding and using appropriate and reliable
financial and performance information to support
informed decision making and performance
management;
c) Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports
the delivery of strategic priorities; and
d) Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound
system of internal control.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Arrangements in
place?

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 30

Our fees

Yes

Forward look

7

3.

VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Sub-criteria

Commentary

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Financial and performance reports demonstrate a
history of achieving cost reductions without adversely
affecting services to date and a balanced medium term
financial strategy is in place. The fair funding review
has been delayed once again but the Council has a
strategy in place to meet several different funding
scenarios.
We considered the following aspects of proper
arrangements specified by the National Audit Office as
part of our risk assessment, and, based on our riskbased approach, we did not identify any significant
issues or exceptions in the Council’s arrangements:
a) Planning finances effectively to support the
sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and
maintain statutory functions;
b) Managing and utilising assets effectively to support
the delivery of strategic priorities; and
c) Planning, organising and developing the workforce
effectively to deliver strategic priorities.

Yes

Working with
partners and other
third parties

The Council has a good record of working with partners
and other third parties.
We considered the following aspects of proper
arrangements specified by the National Audit Office as
part of our risk assessment, and, based on our riskbased approach, we did not identify any significant
issues or exceptions in the Council’s arrangements:
a) Working with third parties effectively to deliver
strategic priorities;
b) Commissioning services effectively to support the
delivery of strategic priorities; and
c) Procuring supplies and services effectively to support
the delivery of strategic priorities.

Yes

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Arrangements in
place?

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 31

Our fees

Forward look

8

3.

VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Significant audit risks
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work to identify whether or not a risk to our conclusion exists. Risk, in
the context of our work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements
in place at the Council being inadequate. In our Audit Strategy Memorandum, we reported that we had identified
one significant audit risk. The work we carried out in relation to significant risks is outlined below.

Risk

Work undertaken

Conclusion

The Council’s medium term
financial strategy (MTFS)
2020/21 to 2022/23 sets out
the financial challenges that
the Council continues to
face. Despite delivering
some £211m of savings
between 2010 and the end
of 2019/20 the Council will
need to secure further
cumulative savings of
£20.2m by the end of
2022/23.
The latest budget monitoring
and savings programme
report forecasts a balanced
position at the year end
however the Integrated
Fund with Salford CCG,
through which a range of
Children’s, Adults and
Primary Care services are
delivered, is reporting a
£9.5m overspend of which
the Council share is £5.1m.
These financial challenges
are not new and are not
unique to Salford Council,
they do however present a
significant risk in respect of
considering the
arrangements that the
Council has in place to
deliver financial
sustainability over the
medium term..

We reviewed the
arrangements the Council
has in place for ensuring
financial resilience,
specifically that the medium
term financial plan has taken
into consideration relevant
factors such as funding
reductions and demand
pressures.
We also reviewed the
arrangements in place to
monitor progress delivering
the budget and related
savings plans.
The Council was able to
contain in-year financial
pressures in services for
looked after children by
making one-off savings,
finding alternative funding
for some services,
identifying further
efficiencies in how goods
and services are purchased
and by working to increase
income. This allowed the
Council to avoid the use of
additional reserves.

It is clear that the Council faces
some of the most difficult
decisions it has ever faced in
balancing the budget going
forwards, especially given the
impact of the COVID-19
pandemic.
Although the Council does have
reserves available to minimise the
immediate impact, and has a good
track record of making savings, in
accordance with the Council’s own
strategy, further savings will need
to be identified and delivered.
In addition, the reserves available
to support the budget are reducing
and the available balances will
soon reach the minimum needed
to deal with unforeseen
circumstances and risk. This
means reserves will not be
available to support the revenue
budget in the way that they have in
recent years.
The position beyond 2020/21 is
very uncertain as much depends
on the outcome of the
comprehensive spending review,
fair funding review and the
measures that will be taken in
relation to the future operation of
the business rates system.
Decisive action to bridge the
budget gap over the medium term
is a key priority for the Council.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 32

Our fees

Forward look

9

4.

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

Exercise of statutory reporting powers

No matters to report

Completion of group audit reporting requirements

To be reported

Other information published alongside the audited
financial statements

Consistent

The NAO’s Code of Audit Practice and the 2014 Act place wider reporting responsibilities on us, as the Council’s
external auditor. We set out below, the context of these reporting responsibilities and our findings for each.

Matters on which we report by exception
The 2014 Act provides us with specific powers where matters come to our attention that, in our judgement, require
reporting action to be taken. We have the power to:
•

The 2014 issue a report in the public interest;

•

make statutory recommendations that must be considered and responded to publicly;

•

apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law; and

•

issue an advisory notice under schedule 8 of the 2014 Act.

We have not exercised any of these statutory reporting powers.
The Act also gives rights to local electors and other parties, such as the right to ask questions of the auditor and the
right to make an objection to an item of account. We did not receive any such objections or questions.

Reporting to the NAO in respect of Whole of Government Accounts
consolidation data
The NAO, as group auditor, requires us to complete the WGA Assurance Statement in respect of its consolidation
data, and to carry out certain tests on the data. We expect to submit this information to the NAO in January 2021.

Other information published alongside the financial statements
The Code of Audit Practice requires us to consider whether information published alongside the financial
statements is consistent with those statements and our knowledge and understanding of the Council. In our
opinion, the other information in the Statement of Accounts is consistent with the audited financial statements.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 33

Our fees

Forward look

10

5.

OUR FEES

Fees for work as the Council’s auditor
We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work in the Audit Strategy Memorandum, presented to Audit
and Accounts Committee in March 2020 .
Having completed our work for the 2019/20 financial year, we can confirm that our final fees are as follows:
2019/20 proposed
fee

Area of work
Delivery of audit work under the NAO Code of Audit
Practice

2019/20 final fee

£105,513

£129,453*

* At the time of preparing this report we are proposing additional fees to meet additional work required as a result of
changes in the regulatory environment within which we operate and which has increased the work required in a
number of areas. We have also undertaken additional work in relation to the impact of COVID-19 in respect of
property valuations and pensions (material valuation uncertainty), and also the Council’s going concern
assessment.

Fees for other work
We confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit services for the Council in the year.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 34

Our fees

Forward look

11

6.

FORWARD LOOK

Financial outlook
The COVID-19 pandemic and the consequences of local and regional lockdowns and restrictions will have a
significant impact on the UK economy for years to come. The pandemic has created significant uncertainties and
pressures in the Council’s medium term financial planning arrangements. Clarity over the impact will only be known
when the virus has been brought under control and the impact on the economy becomes clearer. The Council is
monitoring and updating plans but is anticipating future pressures in the income it receives. In particular, Collection
Fund income is likely to be affected by any negative impact to the local and national economy. Public spending is
also likely to be tightly controlled as the Government begins to manage the levels of borrowing incurred.
There is also uncertainty stemming from the UK’s new trading arrangements with the European Union. While this
may not directly impact on the Council’s supply chains, the impact on the overall economy may create indirect
pressures.
It is critical that the Council continues to monitor and refresh its medium term plan so that potential funding
shortfalls can be identified as early as possible and mitigations identified to minimise the impact on services.

Operational challenges
The Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the services provided by the Council. Services have either
been suspended or redesigned in order for them to be delivered in a safe manner for officers and users. Aside from
Covid-19, other key challenges faced by the Council include:
•

generating the savings necessary to deliver the medium term financial strategy;

•

responding to the demand and funding pressures faced by the integrated Children’s, Adults and Primary Care
fund; and

•

addressing future uncertainties around the funding position as much depends on the outcome of the
comprehensive spending review, fair funding review and the measures that will be taken in relation to the future
operation of the business rates system.

How we will work with the Council
In terms of the technical challenges around the production of the statement of accounts, we will continue to offer
accounting workshops to finance officers, and the audit team will continue to share our knowledge of new
accounting developments. We will also be on hand to discuss any issues as and when they arise.
Given the impact of COVID-19 on the 2019/20 reporting timetable, there is some uncertainty in respect of the
2020/21 completion dates. We will continue to work with the finance team to ensure timely completion of our audit
work.
We will also share relevant insights that we have as a national and international accounting and advisory firm with
experience of working with other public sector and commercial service providers.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 35

Our fees

Forward look

12

6.

FORWARD LOOK

Changes to the Code of Audit Practice
The Code of Audit Practice (the Audit Code), issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General, prescribes the way we
carry out our responsibilities as your auditors. On 1st April 2020 a new Code came in to force and will apply to our
work from 2020/21 onwards.
The new Audit Code continues to apply the requirements of International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) to our audit
of the financial statements. While there are changes to the ISAs that are effective from 2020/21 the Audit Code has
not introduced any changes to the scope of our audit of the financial statements. We will continue to give our
opinion on the financial statements in our independent auditor’s report.
There are however significant changes to the work on value for money arrangements, and the way we report the
outcomes of our work to you.
The auditor’s work on value for money arrangements
From 2020/21 we are still required to satisfy ourselves that you have made proper arrangements for securing the
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources. However unlike under the 2015 Audit Code, we will
no longer report in the form of a conclusion on arrangements. Instead, where our work identifies significant
weaknesses in arrangements, we are required to report those weaknesses to you, along with the actions that need
to be taken to address those weaknesses.
Our work on value for money arrangements will focus on three criteria, specified in the revised Audit Code:
• Financial sustainability: how the Council plans and managers its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver
its services;
• Governance: how the Council ensures it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and
• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Council uses information about its costs and
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.
Under the new Audit Code we will be expected to report and make recommendations as soon as we identify a
significant weakness in arrangements, as opposed to reporting our conclusion on arrangements at the end of the
audit cycle as has previously been the case.
Reporting the results of the auditor’s work
We currently issue you with an Annual Audit Letter which provides a summary of our work across all aspects of our
audit. From 2020/21 the Annual Audit Letter will be replaced by the Auditor’s Annual Report. This will continue to
provide a summary of our work over the year of audit but will also include a detailed commentary on your
arrangements in place to achieve economy, efficiency and effectiveness. This commentary replaces the conclusion
on arrangements that was previously provided and will include details of any significant weakness identified and
reported to you, follow up of any previous recommendations made, and the our view as to whether
recommendations have been implemented satisfactorily.
The guidance supporting the new Audit Code is being developed by the National Audit Office and we will provide
you with any further updates to our approach arising from this guidance when it is released.

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 36

Our fees

Forward look

13

6.

FORWARD LOOK

Redmond Review
In September 2020, Sir Tony Redmond published the findings of his independent review into the oversight of local
audit and the transparency of local authority financial reporting. The report makes several recommendations which,
if implemented, could affect both the financial statements local authorities are required to prepare and the work we
are required to do.
The report and recommendations are wide-ranging, and include:
• the creation of the Office of Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR), set up to manage, oversee and regulate local
audit;
• reviewing reporting deadlines;
• reviewing governance arrangements in local authorities, including the membership of the Audit Committee;
and
• increasing the transparency and reducing the complexity of local authority financial statements.

The recommendations and findings will now be considered by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government. We look forward to working with all stakeholders to implement changes to ensure the development and
sustainability of local audit.
The full report is available here: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-andexternal-audit-independent-review

Executive summary

Audit of the
financial
statements

Value for
money
conclusion

Other reporting
responsibilities

Page 37

Our fees

Forward look

14

CONTACT
Karen Murray
Partner
Phone: 0161 238 9248
Mobile: 07721 234 043
karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Cath Andrew
Senior Manager

Phone: 0191 383 6318
Mobile: 07815 878116
Email: cath.andrew@mazars.co.uk

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership,
specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax and legal
services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories
around the world, we draw on the expertise of 40,400
professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership
and 16,000 via the Mazars North America Alliance –
to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their
development.
*where permitted under applicable country laws

The contents of this document are confidential and not for
distribution to anyone other than the recipients. Disclosure
to third parties cannot be made without the prior written
consent of Mazars LLP

Page 38

© Mazars 2020
www.mazars.com

Agenda Item 8
Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.

REPORT OF THE
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER & HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT
TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE
ON WEDNESDAY 20th January 2020
TITLE: Internal Audit Progress Report (October 2020 to January 2021)
RECOMMENDATIONS: Members are requested to consider the contents of the
report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the
resources utilised by Internal Audit during 2020/21, the activities undertaken in the
reporting period, and the status of work currently being undertaken.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:



Audit & Accounts Committee reports
Internal Audit’s management information systems

KEY DECISION: No
DETAILS: N/A
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

Page 39

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Internal audit projects are managed within the Unit’s risk
based audit protocols aimed at giving assurance regarding the management of the
City Council’s key business risks.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that
one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. The
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to ensure that they
have a sound system of internal control which:
(a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims
and objectives;
(b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is
effective; and
(c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.
A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the
effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, taking into
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.
In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (CIPFA/IIA) requires an
authority’s chief audit executive to develop and maintain a quality assurance and
improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity. The
quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and
external assessments. Internal assessments include the ongoing monitoring of the
performance of the internal audit activity.
The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the resources utilised by Internal
Audit between October 2020 and January 2021, the activities undertaken in the
reporting period, and the status of work currently being undertaken. The report also
explains that CIPFA has approved guidance on the head of internal audit annual
opinion for 2020/21. As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, heads of internal audit are
likely to have made significant changes to their internal audit plans which may mean
that they have concerns about the consequences for their annual opinion. As
confirmed in this report, the guidance addresses this risk and sets out steps to be
taken, including working with the leadership team and audit committee.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Jean Gleave Head of Internal Audit
The audit plan is funded from within the revenue budget and there are no additional
financial demands resulting from this report.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Procurement
Manager.
There are no known procurement implications with this report.

Page 40

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Catherine Sharples HR Manager
There are no known HR implications arising from this report.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: None
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A
CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith, Internal Audit Manager
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A

Page 41

TEL NO: Ex 6969

Internal Audit Progress Report – 20th January 2021
INTRODUCTION
This report provides Members of the Audit & Accounts Committee with details of the
resources utilised by Internal Audit and outcomes, including work reported in this period,
work currently being undertaken and new work commenced.
Appendix 1 provides details of the progress and status of the 2020/21 plan.
Audits Completed and Reports Issued
Table 1 below summarises the three audits that have been finalised since the last progress
report to Audit and Accounts Committee, and the corresponding number of agreed actions
and overall level of assurance provided for each of those audits.
Summary Reports have been provided to Committee Members for each of these reviews.
Table 1: Reports Issued
Number of agreed actions and priority
Audit

Level of
Assurance

Critical

High

Medium

Low

Total

Pupil Modelling

-

-

1

-

1

Satisfactory

Project Imagine (Project
Governance)

-

-

1

-

1

Satisfactory

Service Desk (ICT)

-

-

3

-

3

Satisfactory

-

-

5

-

5

Total:

Any level of assurance given to each audit is a balanced judgement based upon the
established system of controls, the subject’s approach to risk management, and the nature
of any recommendations made and actions agreed. (See Appendix 2 for explanations of
the different levels of assurance).
Actions are classified over the categories of critical, high, medium, and low. See Appendix
3 for explanations of the different levels of priority.
The agreed actions are designed to improve the control environment and/or improve ‘value
for money’ within the client’s area of responsibility and we can report that the action made
in this period has been agreed by management.
Our audit reports include an action plan that records the detail of our findings, the agreed
action that management intend to take in response to these findings and the timescale to
undertake such action. This provides a record that progress can be measured against when
we undertake our Post Implementation Reviews or follow-up work.
OTHER WORK
This section details other work completed by the audit team during the period.
Resources:
Covid-19 Response
Since the middle of March 2020, and the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, the internal audit
and counter fraud teams have been supporting the council’s response to the pandemic.

Page 42

1

Internal Audit Progress Report – 20th January 2021


working with the Revenues and Benefits team on the Government’s small business, retail
& hospitality, and discretionary grants; providing independent assurance and working to
reduce the risk of fraud. This work has recently grown again following the introduction of
the Tier system and the national lockdowns, in response to which the Government has
introduced several new grant schemes requiring similar assurance work to that which we
undertook over the spring/summer.



working with the Housing Benefits team to implement a robust system for processing the
Government’s track and trace / isolation payments to eligible members of the public.

In addition, over the Spring/Summer the internal audit and counter fraud teams were
supporting the council’s response to the pandemic by:


making safe and well calls to residents who are shielding.



providing support to the accounts payable team.

Staffing
Sickness levels remain relatively low within the team, however, we anticipate being without
one of our senior auditors for the remainder of the year due to maternity leave, with the
impact of losing up to 60 days of audit work this financial year.
Work Underway
Work on the audit plan has now re-commenced as noted in Appendix 1. Draft reports have
been issued in the following areas:


Wharton Primary School



Blue Badges

Reports are also being drafted for:


Personal Budgets & Direct Payments



Homelessness



Corporate Complaints



Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service (WRADAS)



Health Inequalities

Information Governance and Data / Digital
We continue to provide advice and consultative support to the council’s arrangements for
information governance and its response to the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO)
inspection in March 2018. In addition we provide ongoing assurance and consultative
support to the council’s continued compliance with the requirements of:


ISO 27001



Payment Card Industry

Page 43

2

Internal Audit Progress Report – 20th January 2021
Supporting Squads, Transformation and Change
Internal Audit is currently involved in a ‘squad’ supporting:


Pensions: Contribution payments to providers, providing consultancy advice or
independent assurance as/when our input is appropriate.



Project Imagine (Replacement system for CareFirst), providing consultancy advice or
independent assurance as/when our input is appropriate.

Investigations
The team continue to be available to support the business with internal investigations,
providing technical skills and advice when called upon and managing the whistleblowing
hotline / online referrals. We have received one recent referral that we are currently
evaluating.
Collaboration




We have ongoing representation on sub groups of the North West Heads of Internal
Audit Groups, the groups have been established to share good practice in audit across
the region:
o

Contract Audit Group

o

IT Audit Group

o

Schools Audit Group

In keeping with previous years, we have supported the annual audit of payroll by the
external auditor, Mazars, by undertaking some specific audit tests on the payroll system
(Noted in Table 1).

AUDIT WORK RECENTLY STARTED OR DUE TO START
Work is underway as noted in Appendix 1 and terms of reference have been finalised for
the following audit work:


RHS Garden Bridgewater Programme (Governance)



Early Help / Helping Families

School Audits
We have discussed the schools audit plan with the Assistant Director. There is continued
pressure on Salford’s schools owing to the ongoing pandemic which limits their capacity to
participate in an audit. We have been auditing schools only where there is felt to be a
pressing need, in full consultation with the Assistant Director.

Page 44

3

Internal Audit Progress Report – 20th January 2021
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS (PSIAS)
Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion: Addressing the Risk of a Limitation of
Scope
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) note the role of the Head of Internal
Audit, in accordance with the PSIAS, is to provide an opinion, based upon, and limited to,
the work performed on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s
governance, risk management, and control processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of
internal control). The opinion is one component that the council takes into account in
compiling its Annual Governance Statement.
During 2020/21 the impact of COVID-19 on all the public services has been considerable
and for internal auditors it has raised the question of whether they will be able to undertake
sufficient internal audit work to gain assurance to provide the overall opinion. CIPFA has
issued guidance on this subject for Heads of Internal Audit to consider. CIPFA recognises
that local government bodies are struggling with considerable challenges and are having to
make difficult decisions on how best to use their available staff and financial resources to
meet critical needs. However, the professional and regulatory expectations on local
government bodies, to ensure that their internal audit arrangements conform with the PSIAS,
have not changed.
Heads of Internal Audit will need to consider whether they can still issue the annual opinion
or whether there will need to be a limitation of scope. A limitation of scope arises where the
Head of Internal Audit is unable to draw on sufficient assurance to issue a complete annual
opinion in accordance with the professional standards. This is an issue not only for the Head
of Internal Audit but also for the leadership team and the Audit Committee who normally rely
on that opinion. It may also have wider consequences for stakeholder assessments of the
organisation. While the limitation of scope will only be formally published in 2021 as part of
the Head of Internal Audit’s (HIA) annual report, the guidance addresses the importance of
early identification of this risk.
Key Requirements for Local Government Bodies:
CIPFA have noted the following key requirements that heads of internal audit (HIA),
leadership teams and audit committees should follow:
1. The HIA should plan to obtain sufficient assurance to support the annual opinion, taking
into account both internal audit work and other sources of assurance. The reliance the
HIA is placing on other sources of assurance should be disclosed in the overall opinion.
2. The HIA, leadership team and audit committee should review and discuss internal audit
capacity where there are concerns and develop an action plan to mitigate the risk.
3. The HIA should make best use of their audit resources to maximise assurance.
4. Where the HIA considers that a limitation of scope is likely, the leadership team and audit
committee should be advised promptly. The HIA should set out the likely consequences
assessed and advise on remedial action to avoid a limitation of scope.
5. The HIA annual report should contain a clear explanation of any limitation of scope along
with its causes and plans to address the situation going forward.
6. Where the HIA annual report and opinion contains a limitation of scope the authority
should state this in the annual governance statement.

Page 45

4

Internal Audit Progress Report – 20th January 2021
Effective Use of Internal Audit Resources
The internal audit plan for 2020/21 attached to the strategy document reported to the
October Audit & Accounts Committee meeting included 12 months audit work; this is more
than can be achieved realistically within the remaining months of current financial year. We
have engaged with the senior leadership teams to confirm that the work on the plan remains
relevant and of value and to establish priorities regarding the timing of audit fieldwork. This
has taken into account available resources and changing capacity within services as they
respond to fast paced changes in service delivery. Only a small number of changes have
been made to date to the plan of work drafted in March. We will continue to progress through
the planned work, looking to make best use of available internal audit resources over the
remainder of the year. The audits outstanding at the end of 2020/21 will transfer into the
2021/22 audit plan, subject to further consultation with the leadership teams in Quarter 4.
Internal Audit will assess the impact and likely consequences for the annual opinion and
update the leadership team and Members on an on-going basis throughout the remainder
of 2020/21 by means of Progress Reports and Audit Committee Summaries.

Page 46

5

Audit Plan 2020/21 – Progress

Appendix 1

Appendix 1: Audit Plan 2020/21
Audit / Activity

Timing

TOR

Reported

Assurance

Governance Arrangements / AGS

ongoing

n/a

n/a

n/a

Risk Management and Assurance Framework

ongoing

n/a

n/a

n/a

Information Governance

ongoing

n/a

n/a

n/a

Transformation, Change & Squads Support

ongoing

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Comments

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK

SERVICE REFORM (general)
Agency Workers (bf)
Contract Management

Page 47

Corporate Complaints (bf)
Housing Benefits Service Redesign (bf)
Blue Badges

TBC
Ongoing
Q3
Q3/4
Q3

Member Allowances and Payments (bf)

TBC

Modern Slavery (bf)

TBC

Statutory Returns - Data Integrity & Resources (bf)

Fieldwork complete / drafting report
Initial planning
28/09/20

TBC

TBC

Draft report issued 22nd Dec

Q4

SERVICE REFORM (grants & compliance work)
Greaves Trust

Q3/4

Annual review

Blue Badges (new criteria implementation)

Q1

n/a

03/06/20

Certified

Final report issued

Transport – Bus Subsidy

Q2

n/a

29/09/20

Certified

Final report issued

Also potentially including: Local Growth Fund; Cycle
City; Highways – Potholes & Flood Resilience; and
Empty Homes Grant.

TBC

SERVICE REFORM (core financial systems)
Accounts Payable / Creditors (bf)

Q3/4

6

Audit Plan 2020/21 – Progress

Audit / Activity

Appendix 1

Timing

Budgetary Control

TBC

Main Accounting System (bf)

Q3/4

TOR

Reported

Assurance

Payroll Calculations

Q1

n/a

24/07/20

n/a

Payroll Payments (bf)

Q3

17/08/20

TBC

TBC

Treasury Management

TBC

Comments

Memo report
Fieldwork underway

Service Reform (information technology and digital)
Data Centre (Physical and Environmental Security)

On hold

Asset Management

Fieldwork underway

PCI Compliance

Page 48

n/a

n/a

n/a

Project Imagine (CareFirst system replacement)

Ongoing / Ad hoc consultancy

ISO 27001

n/a

n/a

n/a

IT Strategy and policies (bf)
Service Desk Management (New Application) (bf)

Ongoing / quarterly reports

Ongoing / Ad hoc consultancy
Initial planning

Q1/2

10/01/20

05/12/20

Satisfactory

n/a

21/07/20

n/a

17/12/20

TBC

TBC

PLACE
Catering (Cash Handling)
CCTV Control Room (ISO Compliance)

TBC
Q1

Commercial Estate Management

TBC

Construction Services (Inventory)

TBC

Health & Safety

TBC

Income Processes (Former UV services)

Q2/4

Major Projects – RHS Bridgewater Programme
Governance

Q3

Major Projects – University & Crescent Programme
Governance

Q3

Taxis

Final report issued

Fieldwork
Initial discussion but likely to move to 21/22

TBC

7

Audit Plan 2020/21 – Progress

Audit / Activity

Appendix 1

Timing

TOR

Reported

Assurance

Project Imagine (programme governance)

Q1/2

24/02/20

22/10/20

Satisfactory

Personal Budgets & Direct Payments (Children &
Families) (bf)

Q2/3

TBC

TBC

Homelessness (bf)

Q2/3

18/01/19

TBC

TBC

Client Charging Policy (bf)

TBC

Pupil Modelling and Planning (bf)

Q2/3

09/01/20

07/12/20

Satisfactory

Use of Section 17 Funds (bf)

Q2/3

Comments

PEOPLE

Page 49

Early Help and Helping Families (GM Troubled
Families)
SEN / High Needs Provision

Independent Fostering Agency (IFA)

TBC

Integrated Commissioning (Children & Families) –
Governance (bf)

TBC

Out of Borough Placements (Approval Processes)

TBC

Personal Budgets & Direct Payments (Adults)

TBC

Welfare Rights & Benefits Advisors

Finalising fieldwork / Drafting report

Planning / fieldwork commencing

Q2/Q3
TBC

Finalising fieldwork / Drafting report

Fieldwork

Q3

Home Care

Population Health / Inequalities

20/08/19

Risk workshop held. Finalising TOR

Q3

17/09/20

TBC

TBC

Drafting report

Q2/3

12/08/20

TBC

TBC

Drafting report

PEOPLE (Establishments)
Children’s Homes (ongoing schedule of visits)

TBC

Schools Financial Value Standard

Q3/4

n/a

n/a

n/a

Ongoing

n/a

n/a

n/a

School governance support and test plan development
All Hallows RC High School

On hold due to Covid-19

TBC

8

Audit Plan 2020/21 – Progress

Audit / Activity

Appendix 1

Timing

Clifton Pupil Referral Unit

TBC

Wharton Primary School

Q3

Springwood Primary School

TBC

Mesne Lea Primary School

TBC

St Mary’s RC Swinton Primary School

TBC

River View Primary School

TBC

Godfrey Ermen Memorial CE Primary School

TBC

St Paul’s CE Nevile Road Primary School

TBC

Westwood Park Primary School

TBC

Page 50

Light Oaks Junior Primary School

TBC

St Charles RC Primary School

TBC

Mossfield Primary School

TBC

St Edmund’s RC Primary School

TBC

St Mark’s CE Worsley Primary School

TBC

Clifton Primary School

TBC

St John’s CE Primary School

TBC

Brentnall Primary School

TBC

Irlam Endowed Primary School

TBC

TOR

Reported

Assurance

n/a

TBC

TBC

Comments

C/F from 19/20. Draft report issued 15th Dec

* Indicative level of assurance, based on the progress made since the original audit review

9

Levels of Assurance

Appendix 2

Appendix 2: Levels of Assurance
Level of
Assurance

EFFECTIVENESS of the control framework

Audit findings

Opinion

Audit findings

Opinion

High

Appropriate procedures and
controls are in place to
mitigate the key risks.

There is a sound system of
internal control designed to
achieve objectives.

No or only minor exception
found in testing of
procedures and controls.

The controls that are in place are
being consistently applied.

Satisfactory

In the main, there are
appropriate procedures and
controls in place to mitigate
the key risks reviewed,
albeit with some that are not
fully effective.

There is generally a sound
system of internal control
designed to achieve
objectives, but with few
exceptions.

A small number of
exceptions found in the
testing of procedures and
controls.

There is evidence of noncompliance with some controls,
which may put achievement of
some of operational objectives at
risk.

Limited

A number of significant
gaps identified in the
procedures and controls in
key areas.

The system of internal
controls is weakened by
some significant gaps.

A number of reoccurring
exceptions found in testing
of the procedures and
controls.

There is poor compliance with
controls and procedures which
may put operational objectives at
risk of not being fully achieved.

Minimal

For all risk areas there are
significant gaps in the
procedure and control. This
will affect the effectiveness
of organisation’s overall
control framework.

Overall, there is a poor
system of internal control in
place.

Due to the absence of
effective controls and
procedures, no reliance can
be placed on their
effectiveness.

There is a substantial noncompliance with controls and
procedures or compliance with
inadequate controls and
procedures, which will likely put
the council’s objectives at
significant risk of not being
achieved.

Page 51

DESIGN of the internal control framework

10

Priority of Actions
Appendix 3

Appendix 3: Priority of Actions

Page 52

Priority

Rationale

Critical

Critical issue that could have a significant impact on a key system, function, or process objectives, and also the council's
objectives.

High

Control weakness that could have a serious impact on a key system, function, or process objectives.

Medium

Control weakness that could have an impact on the achievement of a key system, function or process objectives or an
issue, which, if addressed, would contribute towards raising the standard of internal control.

Low

Minor control weakness that does not have an impact upon the achievement of a key system, function or process
objectives. Implementation of the recommendation would strengthen the control framework and/or improve compliance
with existing controls.

11

Agenda Item 9
Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.

REPORT OF: CITY SOLICITOR

TO: AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE
ON 20th JANUARY 2021
TITLE: Committee on Standards in Public Life – Local Government Ethical
Standards

RECOMMENDATIONS:



Members note the review by the Committee on Standards in Public Life and the
list of best practice recommendations.
Members note the work undertaken by the Standards Committee to implement
the best practice recommendations.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to make members aware of the 20th report of the
Committee on Standards in Public Life, on the subject of ethical standards in local
government. The list of best practice recommendations from the review is attached
at Appendix A.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Local Government Ethical Standards - A Review by the Committee on Standards in
Public Life
Standards Committee papers
Code of Corporate Governance

KEY DECISION:

NO

DETAILS:
The review was undertaken by the Committee on Standards in Public Life and the
report published in January 2019.

Page 53

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government
_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
The review includes a number of recommendations and identified best practice to
improve ethical standards in local government. The recommendations are made to
government and to specific groups of public office-holders. The review recommends
a number of changes to primary legislation, which would be subject to Parliamentary
timetabling, but also to secondary legislation and the Local Government
Transparency Code, which it is expected could be implemented more swiftly. The
best practice recommendations for local authorities should be considered a
benchmark of good ethical practice, which the Committee on Standards in Public Life
(CSPL) expect that all local authorities can and should implement. A review of the
implementation of the best practice recommendations is underway and a
consultation exercise has been undertaken for the public and public sector.
Work has been undertaken by the City Council’s Standards Committee to review the
council’s compliance with the recommendations in the review and an update report
was discussed at the Standards Committee meeting on the 12th November 2020.
Response to the public sector consultation was co-ordinated by the City Solicitor
after discussion with relevant managers. The response was submitted to CSPL and
the feedback from the secretariat for the CSPL was that the response was very
helpful.
CSPL carried out a review of actions in the 2019 report, and gave further assurance
that the majority of local councils are demonstrating their strong commitment to high
standards in public life.
https://cspl.blog.gov.uk/2021/01/08/local-government-ethical-standards-follow-up-tobest-practice-recommendations/
The City Council has a Code of Corporate Governance which is updated on an
annual basis. The Code contains details of the procedures that the council has in
place to protect itself, mitigate risk and ensure accountability with agreed roles and
responsibilities. This is in accordance with the principles and behaviours that have
been agreed by The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA).
The Code covers both officers and elected members.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Code of Conduct for Members which is based on a series of general principles which
build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles).
Code of Conduct for Officers
Council Constitution

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

Page 54

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Supplied by Sian Roxburgh
If the council fails to maintain robust governance arrangements and fails to comply
with legislation and regulations, then there are reputational risks as well as financial
and legal risks.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Sian Roxburgh
Local authorities have a legal responsibility to conduct, at least annually, a review of
the effectiveness of their governance framework including their system of internal
control (Regulation 6 1 (a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015).
The city council’s Code of Corporate Governance reflects the current assignment of
responsibilities to ensure compliance with the principles and behaviours agreed by
CIPFA. The Council should continue to monitor the arrangements set out in the
Code for effectiveness as well as reviewing the Code on a continuing basis to ensure
that it reflects the latest guidance and legislative requirements.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: supplied by: N/A
HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A
CONTACT OFFICER: Sian Roxburgh
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 55

TEL NO: 0161 793 3620

This page is intentionally left blank

List of best practice

List of best practice
Our best practice recommendations are directed to local authorities, and we expect that any local
authority can and should implement them. We intend to review the implementation of our best
practice in 2020.

Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and harassment
in codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and harassment,
supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by such a definition.
Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring
councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation, and prohibiting trivial or
malicious allegations by councillors.
Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and
regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community organisations and
neighbouring authorities.
Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors and
the public, in a prominent position on a council’s website and available in council premises.
Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at least
once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV.
Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest test
against which allegations are filtered.
Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent
Persons.
Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to undertake
a formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to review and
comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss as being without
merit, vexatious, or trivial.

18

Page 57

List of best practice

Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of misconduct
following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as soon as possible
on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code engaged by
the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker,
and any sanction applied.
Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance
on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the process for
handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes.
Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor
towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council as a whole, rather
than the clerk in all but exceptional circumstances.
Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support and
management of investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish councils
within the remit of the principal authority. They should be provided with adequate training,
corporate support and resources to undertake this work.
Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address
any conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps
should include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the
investigation.
Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or which
they own as part of their annual governance statement, and give a full picture of their
relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities should abide
by the Nolan principle of openness, and publish their board agendas and minutes and
annual reports in an accessible place.
Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or
group whips to discuss standards issues.

Page 58

19

